Financial Statements and Supplemental Information

June 30, 2023 and 2022

(with Independent Auditors' Report thereon)

Table of Contents

Independent Auditors' Report	1-3
Financial Statements:	
Statements of Net Position, June 30, 2023 and 2022	4
Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022	5
Statements of Cash Flows, Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022	6
Notes to Financial Statements	7-14
Supplementary Information:	
Supplemental Information Disclosed in Compliance with Requirements for Audits of United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development and Revolving Loan Funds for Municipalities' Accounting Records	15-19
Departmental Statement of Net Position, Year Ended June 30, 2023 Departmental Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, Year Ended June 30, 2023 Departmental Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, Year Ended June 30, 2022	20 21 22
Supplemental Schedule of Revenue and Expenses - Actual vs. Budget	23
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>	24-25
Schedule of Findings and Responses	26-27
Follow-up on Prior Year Findings	28

SHOPTAW, LABAHN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

JOHN W. SHOPTAW, CPA LORI A. MELTON, CPA JEFFREY S. NUFER, CPA 915 WEST MAIN, SUITE B, P.O. BOX 1065, RUSSELLVILLE, ARKANSAS 72811
Tel. 479-967-3600 Fax 479-967-2131

Independent Auditors' Report

To the City Council City of Ola, Arkansas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Ola Water and Sewer System (a municipal system) which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the related statements of income and expense and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

As discussed in note 1, the financial statements present only the Ola Water and Sewer System and are not intended to present fairly the net position of the City of Ola, Arkansas, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position of the Ola Water and Sewer System, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and changes in net position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Ola Water and Sewer System and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Ola Water and Sewer System's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we

- * Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- * Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- * Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Ola Water and Sewer System's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- * Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

City Council of Ola Page 3

* Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Ola Water and Sewer System's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Ola Water and Sewer System's basic financial statements. The supplemental information, disclosed in compliance with requirements for audits of United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Borrowers' Accounting Records, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated March 18, 2024 on our consideration of the System's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the System's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Shophur, Zabahn e Company, P.A.

March 18, 2024

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2023 and 2022

<u>Assets</u>

	2023	2022
Assets:		
Unrestricted cash	\$ 103,910	118,670
Restricted cash	422,585	374,234
Total cash	526,495	492,904
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful		
accounts of \$3,100 in 2023 and 2022	38,692	38,637
Other assets	11,036	13,593
Net utility plant and equipment	5,597,910	5,747,702
Total assets	6,174,133	6,292,836
Liabilities:	,	
Accounts payable	16,030	15,071 ⁻
Interdepartmental payable	, 953	953
Taxes payable	1,699	1,766
Accrued interest	5,024	5,242
Customer deposits	33,220	32,150
Deferred sanitation revenue	5,442	5,463
Long-term liabilities:		
Due within one year	88,194	85,363
Due in more than one year	2,397,261	2,485,445
Total liabilities	2,547,823	2,631,453
Net Position:		
Net investment in capital assets	3,107,431	3,171,652
Restricted debt service, asset maintenance and customer deposits	422,585	374,234
Unrestricted	96,294	115,497
Total net position	\$ 3,626,310	3,661,383

Statements of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

	2023	2022
Operating revenue:		
Sales and service provided	\$ 397,001	389,461
Other revenue - including sanitation fees	77,584	49,372
Total operating revenue	474,585	438,833
	•	
Operating expenses:		
Professional fees	6,300	5,700
Insurance	9,548	8,663
City service charge	3,000	3,000
Utilities	57,202	57,066
Chemicals and supplies	56,010	36,063
Management fee	40,000	36,000
Repairs and maintenance	13,412	16,610
Personnel costs	-	9,033
Depreciation	317,720	324,455
Permits and licenses	10,222	10,850
Sanitation fees and taxes	69,920	33,691
Bad debt expense	-	962
Machine rental	, -	425
Miscellaneous	11,698	13,291
Total operating expense	595,032	555,809
Loss from operations	(120,447)	(116,976)
Non-operating revenue and (expense):		
Interest expense	(77,737)	(78,739)
Interest income	235	164
Total non-operating revenue and (expense)	(77,502)	(78,575)
Decrease in net position	(197,949)	(195,551)
Beginning net position	3,661,383	3,856,934
Contribution-in-aid of capital projects	162,876	
Ending net position	\$3,626,310	3,661,383

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:	2023	2022
Receipts from customers	\$ 396,946	391,451
Other operating cash receipts	77,584	49,372
Payments to vendors and service providers	(273,863)	(246,174)
Net cash provided by operating activities	200,667	194,649
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:		
Purchases of utility plant and equipment	(5,052)	(3,594)
Repayment of notes payable	(85,353)	(82,571)
Proceeds from grants	(21)	-
Interest paid on revenue bonds and other notes	(77,955)	(78,949)
Net cash used by capital and related		
financing activities	(168,381)	(165,114)
Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities:		
Customer deposits received, net	1,070	3,119
Net cash provided by non-capital		
and related financing activities	1,070	3,119
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Interest received	235	164
Net cash provided by investing activities	235	164
Increase in cash	33,591	32,818
Cash, beginning of year	492,904	460,086
Cash, end of year	\$ 526,495	492,904

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

(1) ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Nature of Operations

Ola Water and Sewer System (the "System") is engaged in providing water, sewer and sanitation services to the City of Ola, Arkansas and the surrounding community. The System also provides water service to Casa, another municipality in Yell County, Arkansas.

(b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(c) Utility Plant and Equipment

Utility plant and equipment are recorded at cost, including interest on funds borrowed to finance the construction of major capital additions. The cost of the utility plant is being depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets using straight-line depreciation.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Assets	Useful Life
Water System	7-50 years
Sewer System	7-50 years
Office Equipment	5-10 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred; replacements and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Property and equipment used by the System are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. In the event that facts and circumstances indicate an impairment exists, an evaluation of recoverability would be performed.

Management evaluates the condition of property, plant, and equipment on a continuing basis and has accumulated reserves it believes are adequate to fund major repairs and replacements. Amounts accumulated in the depreciation reserve fund may not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If additional funds are needed, the City Council has the right to adopt ordinances to increase user rates, obtain additional bond funding, or delay repairs and replacements until funds are available.

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(d) Basis of Accounting

The Ola Water and Sewer System uses the accrual basis of accounting in preparing its financial statements. Revenues are recognized as earned and expenses are recognized as incurred.

(e) Revenue Recognition, Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

In accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and related amendments ("ASC 606"), the System recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied. Generally, the System's performance obligations are satisfied when water and sewer services are rendered to the customer. Revenue is recognized on a monthly basis after the servic has been rendered. Because customers are invoiced at the time service has been rendered and the System's right to consideration is unconditional at the time, the System currently does not maintain contract asset balances. For setup of customer accounts, any amounts that have been collected for services, where service has not transferred, are recorded as customer deposits (contract liabilities). Effective July 1, 2020, the System adopted ASC 606, which provides accounting guidance on the recognition of revenues from contracts. The adoption of ASC 606 did not result in a change of timing of the System's revenue recognition.

(f) Organization -

Ola Water and Sewer System is a municipally operated system and is governed by the City Council of the City of Ola, Arkansas. The Ola Water and Sewer System is a proprietary fund type used to account for activities conducted for the public (enterprise fund). The System applies all Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

(g) Cash

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the System considers cash to be cash in banks, including time deposits.

(h) Regulatory Environment

The quality of water emitted from the sewer treatment plant is regulated by the Environmental Protection Agency and the Arkansas Health Department. The quality of water furnished to customers is subject to the requirements of the Environmental Protection Agency under the Safe Drinking Water Act and the Arkansas Health Department.

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(i) Customer Receivables

Customer receivables are due the tenth business day of the month following customer billings. If an account is not paid by the eleventh business day of the month following billings, a late fee for the current unpaid water and sewer charges is assessed. The System does not assess finance charges on unpaid accounts. If an account is 25 days in arrears, the account is subject to disconnection. If there is no customer response, the meter is locked as disconnection is implemented. If the account is not paid for two consecutive months without payment the customer account is closed and any balance remaining in excess of meter security deposits are written off as a bad debt. There were no accounts written off during 2023. For the year ended June 30, 2022, there were 14 accounts written off totaling \$962. Management has determined the allowance for doubtful accounts by considering an analysis of prior period write-offs and current account risk assessments. The allowance for doubtful accounts was \$3,100 at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

(j) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash in banks, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, approximate fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The amounts shown for bonds and notes payable approximate fair value since these instruments are carried at prevailing market interest rates.

(2) UTILITY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Utility plant and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023	2022
\$5,867,224	5,856,565
3,673,519	3,661,686
5,584	5,584
145,436	
9,691,763	9,523,835
4,093,853	3,776,133
\$5,597,910	5,747,702
	\$5,867,224 3,673,519 5,584 145,436 9,691,763 4,093,853

Activity of the System's utility, plant and equipment for the year 2023 is as follows:

	,]	Balance at		Transfers /	Balance at
		Ju	ne 30, 2022	Additions	(Disposals)	June 30, 2023
	Water system	\$	5,856,565	10,659	-	5,867,224
	Sewer system		3,661,686	11,833	-	3,673,519
-	Office equipment		5,584	-	-	5,584
	Construction in process			145,436		145,436
		\$	9,523,835	167,928	-	9,691,763

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) RESTRICTED CASH

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the System had restricted cash shown as follows:

	2023	2022
Meter fund	\$ 29,182	28,112
Depreciation funds	89,566	84,085
Bond, interest and debt service fund	303,837	262,037
	\$ 422,585	374,234

The System is required to maintain a debt service fund for the payment of principal and interest in the event the System lacks adequate funds for those payments. The required reserve funding as of June 30, 2023 is \$103,496. The System has maintained the required bond and interest fund amounts based on bond ordinances.

The City of Ola Water and Sewer System is required by the bond agreements to maintain a depreciation fund that is reserved for the replacement of related projects and cannot be used without prior written approval of the lending agency.

(4) LONG-TERM NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE

Long-term notes and revenue bonds payable collateralized by a pledge of water and sewer revenue consisted of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

	 2023	2022
United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Agency water improvement 4% revenue bonds, Series 2011, due in monthly installments of \$4,675, including interest. The bonds will mature in July, 2050.	\$ 926,756	945,377
Arkansas Natural Resource Commission 4.75% (2.75% effective June 1, 2017) notes payable due in semi-annual installments of \$19,070 beginning in June 2012, including interest. The bonds will mature in June, 2035.	377,623	404,816

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

	2023	2022
United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Agency water improvement 5% revenue bonds, Series 1990, due in monthly installments of \$640, including interest. The		
bonds will mature in January, 2029.	37,232	42,896
Arkansas Natural Resource Commission 5% note payable due in annual installments of \$3,640, including interest. The bonds will mature in March, 2032.	25,870	28,105
United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Agency water improvement 1.625% revenue bonds, Series 2018, due in monthly installments of \$2,718, including interest. The bonds will mature in December, 2058.	877,320	895,519
Arkansas Natural Resource Commission 5% note payable due in annual installments of \$3,099, including interest. The bonds	ŕ	ŕ
will mature in June, 2027.	11,001	13,429
Arkansas Natural Resource Commission 5% note payable. The note is due in annual installments aggregating \$12,397 beginning in June, 2012. This note will mature in June, 2031.	80,135	88,126
United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Agency water improvement 4.375% revenue bonds, Series 2009, due in monthly installments of \$803,		
including interest. The bonds will mature in July, 2049.	149,518	152,540
	2,485,455	2,570,808
Less current installments	88,194	85,363
	\$2,397,261	2,485,445

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

Maturities on long-term debt for each of the years ending June 30, 2024 through 2029 and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending June 30,	Principal	Interest	Total
2024	\$ 88,194	75,113	163,307
2025	91,189	72,118	163,307
2026	94,278	69,029	163,307
2027	97,504	65,818	163,322
2028	97,703	62,505	160,208
2029 and thereafter	2,016,587	724,904	2,741,491
	\$2,485,455	1,069,487	3,554,942

Interest expense incurred for 2023 and 2022 totaled \$77,737 and \$78,739, respectively.

Activity of the long-term debt for 2023 consists of the following:

	Balance at	Principal	Loan	Balance at
	June 30, 2022	Payments	Advance	June 30, 2023
United States Department of				
Agriculture Rural Development				
total outstanding notes	\$ 2,036,332	45,507	-	1,990,825
Arkansas Natural Resource				
Commission total outstanding				
notes	534,476	39,846		494,630
)	\$ 2,570,808	85,353	-	2,485,455

(5) METER DEPOSIT FUND

The meter deposit fund is a custodial account for meter deposits paid to the system by water customers.

	2023	2022
Cash in fund	\$ 29,182	28,112
Customer meter deposits	33,220	32,150
Meter deposit cash funds under the reported liability	\$ (4,038)	(4,038)

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable due for water, sewer and sanitation services at June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

		2022
Current (0-30 days)	\$ 41,773	41,603
Over 30 days	19	134
Total accounts receivable	41,792	41,737
Allowance for doubtful accounts	(3,100)	(3,100)
Net accounts receivable	\$ 38,692	38,637

(7) CONCENTRATIONS

The Ola Water and Sewer System serves consumers in Ola, Arkansas and surrounding local areas. The System also provides water to Casa, Arkansas in accordance with an agreement which establishes a contract rate of \$1.55 per 1,000 gallons of consumption. Service to Casa accounted for approximately 64% and 62% of consumption in the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

All funds deposited in financial institutions were insured by the FDIC insurance in addition to a pledge of securities by the financial institution holding the deposits.

(8) MANAGEMENT FEE

The System is subject to a service agreement with an independent contractor who provides system maintenance and meter reading services. The terms of the agreement include a flat rate fee assessment based on the number of active metered service locations. Additional charges may be assessed based on costs incurred for materials and supplies used in maintaining and repairing customer service lines. Management fees for 2023 and 2022 totaled \$40,000 and \$36,000, respectively.

(9) CITY SERVICE CHARGE

During 2023 and 2022, the City of Ola charged the System for dedicated personnel costs processed as part of the City's master payroll and employee benefits functions. The System processed personnel costs for which it was reimbursed by the City's street department in the amount of \$0 and \$9,033, respectively. The total interdepartmental charges assessed by the City to the System were as follows:

	2023	2022
Personnel services	\$ -	7,196
Payroll taxes	-	612
Employee pensions	-	1,225
Equipment usage	3,000	3,000
Total city service charges	\$ 3,000	12,033

(10) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 18, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

13 (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(11) DEFERRED SANITATION REVENUE

During 2022, the System adopted a resolution to add sanitation services to its activities. The System has entered into a contract with an independent provider for these services. The System bills its customes a monthly fee for these services in advance of the period in which the services are provided. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the System billed \$5,442 and \$5,463, respectively for July which is reported as deferred sanitation revenue.

(12) CONTRIBUTION-IN-AID OF CAPITAL PROJECTS

During 2023, the City of Ola, Arkansas received a passthrough grant from the State of Arkansas from the U.S. Department of the Treasury American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). The COVID 19 era pandemic funding is available to cities for use in improving infrastructure. The city expended funds from this account on System infrastructure projects which directly benefit the Ola Water and Sewer System. The expenditure of these funds are reflected in the financial statements as a contribution-in-aid of capital projects in the amount of \$162,876.

OLA WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM

Supplemental Information Disclosed in Compliance with

Requirements for Audits of United States Department

of Agriculture Rural Development and Revolving Loan

Funds for Municipalities' Accounting Records

Supplemental Information

Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

WATER CONSUMPTION

Water consumption for the year ended December 31 (gallons)	Water consumption f	for the year ende	d December 31	(gallons):
--	---------------------	-------------------	---------------	------------

water consumption	ior the year ended December 31 (ganons).	2023	'2022					
Residential and sr Casa	34,587,014 61,510,480	35,848,342 58,464,470						
	96,097,494	94,312,812						
Cost of water provide	led per thousand gallons consumed:							
	<u>2023</u>							
Operating expenses Depreciation	\$ 148,736 divided by 96,097,494 gal. = 138,695 divided by 96,097,494 gal. = \$ 287,431	1.55 1.44 2.99	/ thousand / thousand / thousand					
	<u>2022</u>							
Operating expenses Depreciation	\$ 137,262 divided by 94,312,812 gal. = 147,121 divided by 94,312,812 gal. = \$ 284,383	1.46 1.56 3.02	/ thousand / thousand / thousand					

The existing standard water rate schedule for the operations of the water and sewer system is as follows for June 30, 2023:

	Customers within the city limits		
First	First 1,000 gallons	\$17.00	
Next	2,000-5,000 gallons	3.00	/ thousand
Next	Over 5,000 gallons	2.50	/ thousand
	Customers outside the city limits		
First	First 1,000 gallons	\$19.00	
Next	2,000-5,000 gallons	3.00	/ thousand

Base rates increase with service locations that include higher volume meters. The disclosed water rates are unchanged from 2022. Sewer rates include a base fee of \$19.50 and an additional charge based on usage per 1,000 gallons of water use. Higher base fees apply for service meters of larger size. The Casa water rate is \$1.55 per 1,000 gallons of use. Sanitation fees total \$18.00 per collection unit for in-city customers and \$21.00 for customers outside of city limits. An additional \$9.00 fee is assessed for each additional container used.

Supplemental Information, Continued

PRINCIPAL OFFICER AT JUNE 30, 2023:

Mayor:

Jeff Black

INSURANCE

Company	Description	Amount
Arkansas Municipal League March 4, 2022 to March 3, 2023	Water and sewer treatment plant, water tanks and transmitter equipment	\$ 3,842,993
Arkansas Fidelity Bond Trust Fund administered by Arkansas Governmental Bonding Board	Blanket fidelity bond	\$ 250,000

DEBT MATURITY SCHEDULES

Five year amortization schedule of long-term notes and bonds payable:

United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, (Series 1990):

	Total		Total Principal		Interest	Remaining
Year	_Pa	yment	Retirement	Requirement	Principal	
2024	\$	7,680	5,946	1,734	31,286	
2025		7,680	6,255	1,425	25,031	
2026		7,680	6,575	1,105	18,456	
2027		7,680	6,912	768	11,544	
2028		7,680	7,264	416	4,280	
2029 and after		4,352	4,280	72	_	

Supplemental Information, Continued

United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, (Series 2009):

Year	Total syment	Princ <u>Retire</u>	-	terest irement		naining ncipal
2024	\$ 9,636		3,136	6,500	• •	146,382
2025	9,636		3,293	6,343		143,089
2026	9,636		3,440	6,196		139,649
2027	9,636		3,594	6,042		136,055
2028	9,636		3,738	5,898		132,317
2029 and after	202,811	13:	2,317	70,494		_

Arkansas Soil and Conservation Commission note payable:

	Total		Total Principal			Interest		Remaining
<u>Year</u>	_ <u>Pa</u>	yment	. <u>R</u>	etirement_	ند	Requirement	_	Principal
2024	\$	3,639		2,346		1,293		23,524
2025		3,639		2,463		1,176		21,061
2026		3,639		2,587		1,052		18,474
2027		3,639		2,716		923		15,758
2028		3,639		2,852		787		12,906
2029 and after		14,556		12,906		1,650		_

Arkansas Soil and Conservation Commission note payable:

	7	Γotal	Principal	Interest	Remaining
<u>Year</u>	_Pa	yment	Retirement	Requirement	Principal
2024	\$	3,099	2,549	550	8,452
2025		3,099	2,676	423	5,776
2026		3,099	2,810	289	2,966
2027		3,114	2,966	148	_

17

Supplemental Information, Continued

Arkansas Soil and Conservation Commission note payable:

	Total		Total Principal		Remaining
<u>Year</u>	P	ayment_	Retirement	Requirement	<u>Principal</u>
2024	\$	12,397	8,390	4,007	71,745
2025		12,397	8,810	3,587	62,935
2026		12,397	9,250	3,147	53,685 .
2027		12,397	9,713	2,684	43,972
2028		12,397	10,198	2,199	33,774
2029 and after		37,207	33,774	3,433	_

United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Water and Sewer Revenue Bonda (Series 2011):

	Total		Pri	Principal		Interest		Remaining	
<u>Year</u>	_P	<u>ayment</u>	Ret	irement	Rec	uirement	Pr	incipal	
2024	\$	56,100		19,384		36,716		907,371	
2025		56,100		20,173		35,927		887,198	
2026		56,100		20,995		35,105		866,203	
2027		56,100		21,851		34,249		844,352	
2028		56,100		22,741		33,359		821,611	
2029 and after	1	,238,250	;	821,611		416,639		-	

Arkansas Natural Resource Commission note payable:

	Total		Principal	Interest	Remaining
Year	<u>Payment</u>		Retirement	Requirement	<u>Principal</u>
2024	\$	38,140	27,947	7 10,193	349,676
2025		38,140	28,720	9,420	320,956
2026		38,140	29,515	8,625	291,441
2027		38,140	30,333	7,807	261,108
2028		38,140	31,173	6,967	229,935
2029 and after		253,154	229,935	5 23,219	-

Supplemental Information, Continued

United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, (Series 2018):

	Total		Prin	Principal		Interest		Remaining	
<u>Year</u>	Payment		_Retir	Retirement		Requirement		incipal	
2024	\$	32,616		18,496		14,120	;	858,824	
2025		32,616		18,799		13,817	;	840,025	
2026		32,616		19,106		13,510	;	820,919	
2027		32,616		19,419		13,197	;	801,500	
2028		32,616		19,737		12,879	,	781,763	
2029 and after		991,160	78	31,763	2	209,397		_	

Departmental Statement of Net Position

			Sewer and
	Total	Water	Sanitation
Assets:			
Cash in bank	\$ 103,910	103,910	_
Restricted cash	422,585	332,415	90,170
Total cash	526,495	436,325	90,170
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful	,	,	
accounts of \$3,100 for 2023	38,692	23,602	15,090
Other assets	11,036	11,036	-
Net utility plant and equipment	5,597,910	3,331,005	2,266,905
Total assets	6,174,133	3,801,968	2,372,165
Liabilities:			
Accounts payable	16,030	6,140	9,890
Interdepartmental payable	953	953	- '
Taxes payable	1,699	1,036	663
Accrued interest	5,024	4,087	937
Customers' deposits	33,220	33,220	-
Deferred sanitation revenue	5,442	-	5,442
Long-term liabilities:			
Due within one year	88,194	69,698	18,496
Due in more than one year	2,397,261	1,538,437	858,824
Total liabilities	2,547,823	1,653,571	894,252
Net position:			
Net investment in capital assets	3,107,431	1,718,783	1,388,648
Restricted debt service, asset maintenance and	-		
customer deposits	422,585	332,415	90,170
Unrestricted	96,294	97,199	(905)
Total net position	\$ 3,626,310	2,148,397	1,477,913

Departmental Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

		Sewer and	
	Water	Sanitation	Total
Operating revenue:			
Sales and service provided	\$ 276,553	120,448	397,001
Other revenue (including sanitation fees)	11,755	65,829	77,584
Total operating revenue	288,308	186,277	474,585
Operating expenses:	,	-	
Professional fees	4,410	1,890	6,300
Insurance	3,819	5,729	9,548
City services charge	2,100	900	3,000
Utilities	32,817	24,385	57,202
Chemicals and supplies	55,396	. 614	56,010
Management fee	28,000	12,000	40,000
Repairs and maintenance	8,356	5,056	13,412
Depreciation	138,695	179,025	317,720
Permits and licenses	4,817	5,405	10,222
Sanitation fees and taxes	-	69,920	69,920
Miscellaneous	9,021	2,677	11,698
Total operating expenses	287,431	307,601	595,032
Net operating expense	877	(121,324)	(120,447)
Non-operating revenue and (expense):		į	
Interest expense	(63,339)	(14,398)	(77,737)
Interest income	235_		235
Total non-operating revenue and (expense)	(63,104)	(14,398)	(77,502)
Net expense	(62,227)	(135,722)	(197,949)
Decrease in net position	\$ (62,227)	(135,722)	(197,949)
Beginning net position			3,661,383
Contribution -in-aid of capital projects			162,876
Ending net position			\$3,626,310

Departmental Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

	Water	Sewer	Total
Operating revenue:		_	
Sales and service provided	\$ 267,231	122,230	389,461
Other revenue	14,424	34,948	49,372
Total operating revenue	281,655	157,178	438,833
Operating expenses:			
Professional fees	3,990	1,710	5,700
Insurance	3,465	5,198	8,663
City services charge	2,100	900	3,000
Utilities	29,227	27,839	57,066
Chemicals and supplies	35,151	912	36,063
Management fee	25,200	10,800	36,000
Repairs and maintenance	14,174	2,436	16,610
Personnel costs	6,323	2,710	9,033
Depreciation	147,121	177,334	324,455
Permits and licenses	5,473	5,377	10,850
Sanitation fees and taxes	-	33,691	33,691
Bad debt expense	962	-	962
Machine rental	-	425	425
Miscellaneous	11,197	2,094	13,291
Total operating expenses	284,383	271,426	555,809
• • •			
Net operating expense	(2,728)	(114,248)	(116,976)
Non-operating revenue and (expense):			
Interest expense	(65,262)	(13,477)	(78,739)
Interest income	164	-	164
Total non-operating revenue and (expense)	(65,098)	(13,477)	(78,575)
Decrease in net position	\$ (67,826)	(127,725)	(195,551)
Beginning net position			3,856,934
Ending net position			\$3,661,383

Supplemental Schedule of Revenue and Expenses - Actual vs. Budget

	Actual	Budget	Variance
Operating revenue:			
Water	\$ 276,553	289,100	(12,547)
Sewer	120,448	125,900	(5,452)
Other revenue	77,584	1,000	76,584
Total operating revenues	474,585	416,000	58,585
Operating expenses:			
Professional fees and accounting	6,300	7,500	1,200
Management fees	40,000	40,000	-
Water and sewer chemicals	56,010	35,000	(21,010)
Utilities	57,202	52,911	(4,291)
Repairs, maintenance and supplies	13,412	36,000	22,588
Insurance	9,548	9,850	302
City service charges	3,000	20,790	17,790
Permits and licenses	10,222	5,200	(5,022)
Sanitation fees and taxes	69,920	-	(69,920)
Miscellaneous	11,698	2,049	(9,649)
Total operating expense	277,312	209,300	(68,012)
Net operating revenue before			
provision for depreciation	197,273	206,700	(9,427)
Depreciation	317,720	188,488	(129,232)
Net operating revenue (expense)	(120,447)	18,212	(138,659)
Non-operating revenue (expense):			
Interest income	235	-	235
Interest expense	(77,737)		(77,737)
Total non-operating revenue (expense)	(77,502)		(77,502)
Net revenue (expense)	<u>\$(197,949)</u>	18,212	(216,161)

SHOPTAW, LABAHN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

JOHN W. SHOPTAW, CPA LORI A. MELTON, CPA JEFFREY S. NUFER, CPA

915 WEST MAIN, SUITE B, P.O. BOX 1065, RUSSELLVILLE, ARKANSAS 72811

Tel. 479-967-3600 Fax 479-967-2131

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Ola Water and Sewer System City Council of Ola Ola, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Ola Water and Sewer System (a component unit of the City of Ola, Arkansas), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of income and expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2024.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Ola Water and Sewer System's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Ola Water and Sewer System's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ola Water and Sewer System's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and significant deficiency.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable

City Council of Ola Page 2

possibility that a material misstatement of the System's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-001 to be both a *material weakness* and significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ola Water and Sewer System's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Ola Water and Sewer System's Response to Findings

Ola Water and Sewer System's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Ola Water and Sewer System's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the System's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the System's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Shopton, Zalaha a Company, P.A.

March 18; 2024

Schedule of Findings and Responses

Year ended June 30, 2023

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

*Material weakness identified: Yes

*Significant deficiency identified that is

considered to be a material weakness:

Yes

*Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted: No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Internal control over financial reporting

Finding no. 2023-001

Controls over segregation of accounting and reporting functions:

Condition: The System's management and staff lacks duties segregation and knowledge, needed to complete the annual reporting function in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles relative to the System's financial preparation of its financial statements.

Criteria: Management of the System should continually monitor its operations and provide appropriate training so that staff will be knowledgeable of financial reporting requirements as they relate to the System's operations and controls.

Cause: The System has limited financial and human resources to adequately segregate financial and reporting duties.

Effect: Internal financial records are not prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and require material adjustments in order to conform with accounting standards.

Recommendation: Management should continually monitor operations and controls in order that it can be confident that material accounting and reporting errors have not occurred. Management and those in charge of governance should establish regular financial activity review procedures and document such reviews and approvals in its effort to control and monitor operations so that risk of material error is reduced. Management should also consider available training programs for staff that will strengthen their knowledge of generally accepted accounting principles as they relate to the operation and its reporting requirements.

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued)

Year ended June 30, 2023

Management response:

Management believes that given the size and complexity of the operation that it is impractical to implement fully-segregated duties. In light of management's effort to maintain appropriate controls, the City Mayor and members of the City Council will continually monitor the System's financial results. Members of management will refer to professional resources to assist in the maintenance and development of financial records and it believes that such efforts adequately support the System's cash basis accounting methods which are converted at reporting periods to accrual based presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles under the advice of professional service providers and other resources.

Noncompliance

None noted

Questioned Costs

None noted

Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Resolution Matters

Year ended June 30, 2023

Section IV - Prior Audit Findings and Resolution Matters

Controls over segregation of accounting and reporting functions:

The System's management and staff lacks duties segregation and knowledge needed to prepare or take responsibility for the accounting and reporting function in order to apply generally accepted accounting principles relative to the System's financial transactions and the preparation of its financial statements.

Status of prior year condition:

Management's lack of duties segregation and knowledge of generally accepted accounting principles continues to remain an issue due to the practical nature and complexity of the operation. The finding is repeated with respect to the current year operations.